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ECO Animal Health Group plc
{AIM: EAH)
Results for the year ended 31 March 2013

HIGHLIGHTS

s 21% advance in gross profit to £13,1m (2012: £10.8m) reflecting significant improvement in product mix with
greater focus an higher margin business

s 7 percentage point uplift in gross margin lo 45.2% (2012 38.2%)
« Dividend lifted by 7% to 4.0 pence per share net (2012: 3.75 pence )

» Farmings an continuing activities before interest, tax, depreciation, amorlisalion, share based paymenis,
foreign exchange movements and minorities, amounted to £6.7 million {2012 £6.5m).

s MNet cash of £7.5m at period end

o 42.9% increase in pre-lax profil on conlinuing activities to £3.3 millien (2012 £2 3million)

»  COwer 20% rise in eamings per share on continuing activities to 5.1 pence (2012 4.2 pence)
s  Demand for Aivlosin™ confinues to grow strongly

«  Successful launch of Aivlosin® in Norlh America - response continues to be vary encouraging with maore:
registralions expected early In 2014

= Continued growth In China, Japan and Europe

s  First orders of Aivlosin® shipped lo Russia

Peter Lawrence, Execulive Chairman of ECO Animal Health Group ple, commented:

"The new year has started strongly and sales in the first quarter of the year were substantially ahead of the level
for the same period last year. We aro exciled about the prospects of further increasing our market shares,
particularly in Morh America. The recovery that we are currenlly experiencing in Latin America and the expansion
of sales in the Far East give us confidence for growth in the coming year. In addilion, as the global consumplion
of meat protein continues to increase, ECO is in an excellent posilion to supply the animal farming Industry
worldwide. The profits generated by our modern, fast acting treatments should continue to deliver increasing
value to our shareholders.”

Contacis:

ECO Animal Health Group plc
Poter Lawrence 020 8336 6180

Spire Financlal
Anthony Spiro 020 8336 6196

Cenkos Securities ple {Nominated Adviser )
Liz Bowman 020 738784928

ECO Animal Health Group plc is a leader in the development, regisiration and marketing of pharmaceulical
products for animals. Our produets for these global growih markets promote well-being. Our financial goals are
achieved through the careful and respensible application of science lo generate value for our shareholders.
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

1 am pleased to report that ECO Animal Heallh Group has delivered ancther sirang
set of results for the year ended 31 March 2013. ECO has made good progress in
many of its markets and this has been achieved against a background of a generally
lacklustre global economy. It is parlicularly encouraging to repor that following the
receipt of initial markeling authorisalions and the launch of Alviosing® in Morth
America last year, sales in that territory ran ahead of our expectations and lha
product is rapidly gaining acceptance, having recelved a number of excellent reviews
and testimonials from Independent veterinarians. Lalin America, which is traditionally
one of our strongest markets, was adversely affected hy the political situation in
Argentina and Venezuela. Sharcholders are encouraged Lo visit the ECO websites,
which give up to date information aboul the cormpany and its subsidiaries, products
and testimonials, as wall as links to invesiment research.

FINANCIAL

As Aivlosin® revenues confinue to bulld, the Group's ongoing policy is to focus on higher margin products and
move away fram =ales of lower margin, undifferentiated generic drugs. Lower margin products were Important to
ECO in earlier years as they were supplied lo customers as par of a portfollo offer. This move away from low
margin, high sales volume medications is reflected in the year to 41 March 2013 in the continuing improvement in
gross margin, which has now reached 45.2% (2012 38.2%). Pre-tax profit an conlinuing aclivities increased by
almost 43% to £3.3m (2012; £2.3m). Eamings per share on the same basis improved by over 20% to 5.1 pence
(2012; 4.2 pence). Group turnover increased only slightly to £20.0m (2012: £28.3m). Earnings on continuing
activities before interest, tax, deprecialion, amortisalion, share based payments, foreign exchange movements
and minoriies rose again reaching £6.7m (2012: £6.5m). Net cash at the end of the year was £7.5m (2042
£9.5m) after generaling more than £4.3m from operations.

As our business expands and penetrates its major markels with particular emphasis on Ihe opportunities in Morih
America and China, there has heen a predictable increase in the cash resources required lo finance lhe
expansion in working capital resulting from additional stock and debtors. The aclive pharmaceulical ingredient in
Aiviosin® is manufactured in a state of the art, US Food and Drug Administralion approved facility in China,
which iz well |ocated for the local market, but
geographically distant from a number of ECO’s key global
aperations. The resulting long lead times for product
delivery lo lhese markets has an insvitable impact an cash
flow. This cash effect was exacerbated in the year under
review by the political situation in Venezuela, whore we
experienced many months of delay in payments as banks
froze US dollar payments and transfers during the
Presidential etection. This was enormously frustraling as
we were holding very large and impartant orders for that
country, which we could not fulfil until payments were
received towards the end of the year. Argenlina was also
difficult as local banks held up paymenis to the UK,
possibly for political reasons,

ECO trades in international markets and over 31 per cent of sales were in US dollars and nearly 18 per cent in
Euros. Currency fluctuations are a normal part of our business. We hedge our currency risk as effectively as we
can without taking speculative positions so our exposure is slictly limited to the extent of furecast cash flows and
prolection of local assets. As a UK based company, our main administrative cosls are in sterling, although an
increasing presence in the key markets of China and the US does give us the oppartunity to meet adm|nistration
cosls in local currencies, thereby reducing exchange risk.




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

The Board is pleased to declare an Increased dividend for the yoar of 4.0 pence per share, some 7% above lha
level of last year (2012: 3.75 pence), payable on 25 October 2013 to shareholders on the register on 13
September 2013. As in previous years, the scrip dividend alternative will be offered in place of the cash dividend,
In the current year we anticipate further demands on gur working capital to sustain the growth of the business.
Shateholders that efect for the serip dividend will assist our cash flow considerably and thiz will be greatly
appreciated by the Company. Since the inlroduction of the scrip dividend alternative in 2008, soma £3.8m of
cash dividends have been reinvested in our business.

OPERATIONS

Maorth American revenue has continued to build impressively and excesded our expectations in the year under
review. This sirang performance follows the successiul launch of Aiviosin® Water Soluble for swine in Septamber
2042 and Ihe build up of sales in Canada. Income from these lerritories is generated by our sales and lechnical
teams at Pharmgale Animal Health, our MNorlh American joint venture with Pharmgale LLC, a subsidiary of Jinhe
Biolechnology of China.  The technical advantages of Aivlosing over olher antibiolics have ensured Ihat its
usage has been supported by many prominent veterinarians and swine producers. Aiviosin® has been appraved
as a trealment of short duralion againsl specific disease outbreaks. Il fulfills all the requirements zet by the
regulatory authorities for the judicious use of anfimicrabials in the control of disease in farm animals. ECO has
continued lo invest heavily in the Aiviosin® product developmenl and regisiration pragrainme as well as in lhe
costs of launching the product with Pharmgate Animal Health, This investment i in anticipalion of the recaipt of
marketing authorisations for addilional indications and presentalions in Morlh America which should significantly
increase the revenue generating potenfial of the range.

An ECO subsidiary was established in Mexico at the end of the previous financial year following aur dacision to
terminate a long standing local distribution agreement with a third party whose performance had deteriorated |
The new company is now fully oparational and will conlribute a full year's sales in the eurrent year. A fealure of
fhis new operation is that it will bring ECC much closer lo the very imporant Mexican market and will in future
allow ECO fo capitalise on existing beneficial NAFTA (Horlh American Free Trade Agreement) oppartunities.

Sales in Europe, including the UK, grew in the year by over

. 11%, a good resull given the economic conditions coupled
with the considerable pressure that European meat producers
confinue o face owing to the combination of near recard high
feed costs and the weak financial circumstances of many
consumers.  Aiviosin®@ achieved parliculardly geood volume
gains in Russia, Spain and the UK. The Ecomeclin & range of
differenliated generic ivermectin based products showed
renewad growlh, with sales ahead by nearly 13% compared
with the previous year. This improvement followed our
increased focus on this range and the intreduction of new
brands and important new presentations for the market. Sales
of horse paste and pig premix formulations were again
particularly strong.

Latin Awmerica, which hislorically has been one of ECO's strongest markels, had a paricularly challenging year,
with sales declining by some 28% in sterling compared to the priar year. Early season sales In Brazil ware poor,
constrained by delays in the issuing of contracls and lenders. This was principally a reflection of the poor
economic climate, but il iz pleasing to report that business rebounded lo more nommal levels late in the second
half of the year. Deliveries of product to Venezuela and Argenlina were held back by local pelitical, foreign
exchange and liquidity issues. The busingss in lhese two countries also rebounded in the lasl couple of months
of the year.




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Sales in China and Japan graw by 27% compared lo the prior year. Sales of Avlosin® through our EGO BIOK
joint venlure in China enjoyed slrong growlh driven by a combination of overall expansion of the markel and good
pork prices. The Aiviosin® business in Japan made good progress compared to the prior year as the market
returned to more normal trading conditions. Changes to the Japansse Aivlosin® supply chain have resulted in a
significant margin improvement and enhanced profitability for our ECOpharma subsidiary in that country.

Total (urnover fram the Rest of World declined slightly compared to the prior year, although Aiviesin® sales were
up almost 20%.0ur progressive global strategy of increasing our focus on sales of our higher margin praducts
also benefils our cash flow by lowering the amaunt of credit offered to our distributors,

ECO has an Impressive record of successiully obtaining markeling authorisations (also known as drug
registrations), and currently holds In excess of 600 world-wide. & valid marketing authorisalion is a legal
requirement in every country before salcs can begin. The regulatory authorilies granting these authorisations
have become increasingly stringent over lime in order to ensure diug efficacy, the safely of the animals being
reated and also that of consumers and Ihe environment. Once an aulhorisation has been received and
markeling commenced, ongoing work is required to protect and furher enhance the registration, ECO's
investmenl in product development and regulatory work continues on further  Aivlesin® indications and
presentations for existing territories, such as for swine in Canada and the LSA, as well as for poullry and also
for access to new markots such as South Korea. We expect to be granted more licences over the coming
manthis, which will allow us to address even larger new markets for Aivlosin®,

PECPLE

We currently employ over 150 people in our 15 offices around the world and we are, as always, grateful to this
team of hard working and highly qualified specialists who are helping ECO become a leader in the global animal
health market,

QUTLOOK

The new year has started strongly and sales in lhe firsl quarter of the year were substantially ahead of the level
for the same period last year. We are exclied aboul the prospecls of further increasing our markel shares,
particularly in North America. The recovery that we are currently experiencing in Lalin America and lhe expansion
of sales in the Far East give us confidence for growth in the coming year. In addilion, as the global consumption
of meal protein continues to increase, ECO is in an excellent position lo supply the animal farming industry
worldwide. The profits generated by our modem, fast acting treatments should continue to deliver increasing
yalue to our sharehalders.

Peter Lawrence

Executive Chairman

11 July 2013




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

The directors present their report and financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Directors

The following directors have held office since 1 April 2012:

Peter Lawrence Chairiman

Marc Loomes Chief Executive

Kevin Stockdale Finance Director

Brett Clemo Executive Director
Julia Trouse Executive Director
David Danson Mon Executive Director
Julia Henderson Mon Executive Director

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group in the year under review were those of manufacturers and
suppliers of animal health products. These activities were conducted on a global scale, through a
network including both regional offices, notably in Shanghai and Princeton and overseas subsidiaries,
Results and dividends

The consolidated income statement far the year is set out on page 12.

The profit for the year after tax was £3,053 603 (2012 £2 626,926). The directors have declared a
dividend of 4.00p per share (2012: 3.75p).

Share capital

The Company’s share capital is comprised wholly of 3p ordinary shares, each of which carries equal
voting rights.

Substantial shareholdings

At 2 May 2013, the Company had been notified of the following holdings of 3 per cent or more of its
issued share capital.

Ordinary shares Per cent
P A Lawrence and family 11,268,178 20.36
Schroder Investment Management Limited 10,869,441 19.62
Prudential plc 7,845,158 14,17
Axa Investment Managers SA 3,979,022 718
Artemis 3,621,983 B.55
Appleby Trust (Jersey) Limited 2,603,290 4.71
Hargreave Hale & Co 2,350,000 425




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Group research and development activitios

The Group is continually researching into and developing new products and markets. Details of
expenditure incurred and written off during the year are shown in the noles to the financial
statements. Following the recent approval of our first marketing authorisation for Ajvlosin® in the
USA, the Group remains committed to obtaining further authorisations of its Aiviosin® products in the
USA and Canada and also other key territories such as Korea and Russia. Submissions have been
made ta the relevant authorities and approvals are expected in the future, although the exact timing
remains outside the Group’s control,

Review of the business and future developments

A full review of the year, together with an indication of future developments, is given in the Chalrman's
statement on pages 1 to 3.

Post Balance Sheet events

The company issued a total of 19,490 shares at a price of £1.085 each as a result of the exercise of
employee share options on 2 May 2013

Principal risks and uncertainties

The directors present below their review of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business. If
any of the following risks materialise, the Group's business, financial condition, prospects and share
price could be materially and adversely affected. The directors eonsider the following risks along with
specific financial risks such as credit and currency risks, which are more fully outlined in note 32 to
the financial statements, are the most significant, but not necessarily the anly ones associated with
the Group and its businesses.

Competition

The Group operates in competitive global markets and there are no assurances that the Group's
competitiveness will improve or that it will win any additional market share from any of its competitors
or maintain existing market shares. The Group reviews its pricing and takes action to control its cost
base to ensure that it remains as competitive as possible and protect its margines. Failure to do this
may result in materially lower margins and loss of market share.

Dependence on key customers and suppliers

The Group is dependent on a number of customers and distributors in each of the territories into
which it sells. The loss of one or mare of its key customers could result in lower than expected sales
and have a significant impact on the scale of its operations, The Group seeks to minimise reliance on
key territories and individual customers and distributors.

The Group is also dependent on a small nuimber of suppliers for some of its raw materials and
maintains business interruption insurance in respect of each of these. In the longer term the Group Is
working lowards a situation where it has dual sourcing on all key supplies.

Timing of product registrations

The Group uses only reputable subcontractors and experts as well as employing highly qualified staff
to ensure that applications for registrations are of the highest possible guality when subrmitted.
Nevertheless, the Group is subject to occasional delays for example due to backlogs at the licensing
authorities, which are completely outside of its control, These delays can result in the Company falling
short of its short term financial objectives but do not significantly affect its prospects over the longer
term.




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Going concern

The directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully tespite
the uncertain economic outlook. The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show thal the Group should be able to operate within the
level of its current and expected banking facilities,

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence far the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
they continue to adopt the gaing concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Market value of freehold land and buildings

The Group's freehold land and buildings situated at 78 Coombe Road, New Malden, were
independently valued by an appropriately qualified person in April 2013. The market value of the
property at that date was £6560,000. The property at Western Road was acquired at open market
value of £156,550 during the year ended March 2012 and has not been subseqguently revalued.

Key performance indicators

The key performance indicators ("KPls") for the Group are those that communicate the financial
performance and strength of the Group as a whole to shareholders.

& summary of the KPls is as follows:

2013 2012
£ E

Financial
Revenus 28 985 954 28322177
Gross profit 13,103,021 10,817,951
Gross margin % 4520 38.20
Earnings on continuing operations due to
shareholders before interest, tax depreciation,
amortisation, share-based payments, foreign
exchange differences and minorities. 6,670,003 6,519,723
Cash balances, net of borrowings 7,529,678 9,609,732
Non-financial
Health and safety — major accidents reported to the
bioard in the year il il

There are no other major non-financial KPIs.



ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Directors’ interests

Under the Group's executive share option scheme the following directors have the right to acquire

QOrdinary shares.

M D Loomes 2013
2012
J Trouse 2013
2012
i Stockdale 2013
2012
B Clamo 2013
2012
[ Danson 2013
2012
J Henderson 2013
2012

Directors’ emoluments

19,640 at £1.085 100,000 at £1.47 150,000 at £1.50 50,000 at £1.61
27,640 at £1.085 100,000 at £1.47 150,000 at £1.50 50,000 at £1.61
70,000 at £1,47 75,000 at £1.60 20,000 at £1.61

7.640 at £1.085 70,000 at £1.47 75,000 at £1.50 20,000 at £1.61
27,640 at £1.085 70,000 at£1.47 75,000 at£1.50 20,000 at £1.61
27,840 at £1.085 70,000 at £1.47 75,000 at £1.50 20,000 at £1.61
11,640 at £1.085 40,000 at £1.47 75,000 at £1.50 35,000 at £1.35
50,000 at £1.61

27,640 at £1.085 40,000 at£1.47 75,000 at £1.50 35,000 at £1.35
50,000 at £1.61

30,000 at £0.85

30,000 at £0.85

35,000 at £1.35

35,000 at £1,35

The directors who served in the year received the following; emaluments, pension contributions,
share-based payments and benefits in kind.

P A Lawrence
M D Loomes
J Trouse

K Stackdale
B Clemo

D Danson

J Henderson

Directors' insurance

2013 2012

E £

- 1,131
380,678 304,766
126,325 118,075
131,886 126,769
207,295 176,482
15,045 156,447
22671 23,0568
893,900 766,328

The Company maintains directors' and officers' liability insurance for the benefit of its directors which
remained in place at 31 March 2013 and throughout the preceding year.




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Financial instruments

The Group's accounting policies for financial instruments and strategy for management of those
financial instruments are given in notes 2 and 32 to the financial statements respectively.

Employees
Applications for employment by disabled persons are given full and fair consideration. When existing

employees become disabled every effort is made lo provide continuing employment wherever
passible.

Conations
2013 2012
E £
Charitable donations- Charitigs Aid Foundation 345 3,500

Creditor payment policy

The Group agrees terms and conditions for its business transactions wilh its suppliers and payments
are made on these terms, subject to the terms and conditions being met by the suppliers. The Parent
Company has no supplies of goods. Trade payables for the Parent and jts UK subsidiary at the year

end amounted to 122 days (2012: 108 days) of average supplies for the year.

Internal financial control

The board of directors is respensible for the Group’s system of internal financial control. Internal
control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the companies concerned and the risks
to which they are exposed. This provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
mmisstaternent or loss. Strict financial and other controls are exercised by the Group aver its subsidiary
companies by day to day supervision of the businesses by the directors.

Corporate governance

The Company’s shares are traded on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock
Exchange and the Company is therefore not required to report on compliance with the Combined
Code, The directars support the Combined Code and have complied with all the recommendations
which they feel are relevant to a business the size of ECO Animal Health Group ple.

Stockbrokers

Cenkos Securilies plc are the Company's nominated advisor and stockbrokers. The ¢losing share
price on 31 March 2013 was 264p per share (2012 207p). During the year the average share price
was 242 .4p (2012:214.5p).

Auditors

The auditors Reeves and Co LLP will be proposed for reappeintment in accordance with the
provisions of section 489 of the Companies Act 2006.




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have prepared the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

" select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

u make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

" state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to

presume that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Statement of disclosure to auditors

So far as each of the direclars are aware,

(a) there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

{b) they have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken as directors in order o make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are

aware of that information.

On behalf of the board

Peter Lawrence
Director
11 July 2013




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

We have audited the financial statements (the "financial statements") of ECO Animal Health Group plc
for the year ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the Consolidated income statement, the
Consolidated staterent of comprehensive income, the Consaolidated and company statermnents of
financial position, the Consolidated and company statements of changes in equity, the Consolidated
and company stalements of cash flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a
body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose.
YWe do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 9, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to camply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of. whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Parent Company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors; and the overall position of the financial statements.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

L] the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent
Company's affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group's profit and Group's and Parent
Company's cash flows for the year then ended,

v the Group's financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
adopted by the European Union;
® the Parent Company's financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with

IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006; and

" the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 20086,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008

In our opinion the informalion given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

10




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
\We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 20086 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

v adequate accounting records have not been kepl by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not yet been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or

a certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all of the information and explanations we require for our audit,

James O'Brien FCA
Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of;
Reeves and Co LLP
Statutory Auditors
Chartered Accountants
London

Date: 11 July 2013

The maintenance and integrity of the Group's website is the responsibility of the directors; the work
carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditars accept no responsibility for any changes that may have ocourred to the financial statements
since they were initially presented on the website.

1




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income
Administrative expenses

Profit from operating activities

Finance income
Finance cosls
Net finance {expense)/ income

Profit before income tax
Income tax (charge)/eredit
Profit for the year from continuing operations

Digcontinued operations

{Loss) for the year from discontinued
operations (net of income tax)

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent company
Minarity interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Post tax earnings per share (pence)

Diluted earnings per share (pence)
Continuing operations

Discontinued operalions

Diluted earnings per share (pence)

2013

Motes £

2,3 28,985,054

(15,882,933)
13,103,021

4 179,380
(9,752,606)

5 3,529,795

51 56,214

(269,919}
(213,705)

3,316,000

8 {192,487)
3,123,603

m

(70,000)
3,053,603

2,616,892
24 438711
3,053,603

T 23

12

2012
£

28,322,177
(17,504,226)
10,817,951

760,062
(9,373,175)

2,204,838
130,931
(15,427)
115,504

2,320,342

306,584
2,626,926

2,626,926

2,217,627
409,209
2,626,926
2012

4.24

4,19

4.19




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Motes

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation differences

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains/{losses) 21
Revaluation of investiments

Transfer on digposal of investment

Revaluation of freshold properly

Deferred tax on revaluations

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Owmers of the parent company
Minerity interest 24

2013
£

3,053,603

247,348
57.000

28,200

{3.460)
325,088

3,382,691

2,816,028
566,663
3,382,691

212
£

2,626,926

200,872
(151,000)
(2,828)
(58,766)

14782
3,060

2,629,986

2,140,405
489,581

2,629,986

All items listed in other comprehensive income have gone through reserves and are shown in the

consclidated statement of changes in equity.

The notes on pages 18 to 82 form part of these financial statements.
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

CONSOLIDATED

Alributable W the owmers of te Parant

Share Share  Treaswry Revaluatlon Other  Retalned Tatal  Minovily Total
Capital  premium Reserye Reserve Reserves Earnings Intereat Equity
Account
E £ £ £ £ £ £ E £
Balance as at 31 March 201 DE00TSE 4576000 - BS540 {20230 52TRY BSEVGAER  AVE0SET A7 THEHTE
Prafitter Uro year - - - - - 2.2 G627 23T BT Al 200 20256,005
Other comprehensive income:
Forgign currency differences - - - - - 10,5490 £, 650 Bl 200812
Achisdial losses on pension scheme Rssels - - - - - {1000, {BE0N) - (1000
Revralualion of investment - - - {2 0268) - - {2,629) - {262d)
Fevaluation of frechiofd proporty = = - {58,755} - - (58, T66) - (55,766
Meferred taeation a2 - HrE - a2
Tolsf comprehensive income for the year - - - (46,817 - 2 20405 459581 2ERDLE
Transactons valh ovmens recorded direcly
in exquity
Contibutions by and distibulions 1o osmers
Isaueof shares in the yes HE 202 4 557 B1F - g ruang 47308
Share-based payments - - - - 200,800 - 200850 - 200,800
Trantlers on expiry of oplions - - - - (i, 28 5 0ED - - -
Dividends redating o 201 - - - - (LBATSEH)  (1567.595) (3605  (1956,176)
Ceneallztion of share preium accounl - (1,250,000 3250000 1,000,000 - -
Tredsury resense srising from issus of
jointly ownod shares - {521,530 - . - (B2 5B - 1R21.5ED
Transactions wilh onness BEAR  (BEAZBY (5215 3445501 BEISHM  (1TE0.256) (380580 (28840
Brlance ag &4 31 Merch A0t 2755060 GTE0E0T (577580 49875 4T BLEED 65528 18MNT 5824415
Puofil for the year - - - - - 2,616,652 266,802 A6, T 3)053,603
CHivey comnprehensive Inconse:
Farelgn currency dillerences = - 7,535 17,358 Bags2 247,348
Achraid losses o pension scheme asseds - . ¥ D 5¢,003 a0
Revaluation of freshold property - - - 28,200 - - 9,200 28,0
Defarred taxstion < = = {3460y E 3 [3.450) - {34E0)
Total comprehensive income for theyear = - - 24,740 - pTOLAAE 2AKD0M SEGEE3 3382501
:I'mnsz_%c?jms with cuners recordod difecEy
i enuiky
Centrbubions by and distibutons toowners
|ssue of sheres in the year i 207 - - #85.570 FE5.3/0
Share-baz=d payments - - - - 358 760 - 358,280 3585450
Transfers on expiny of oplons - - - - [E2062Z) B2,062 - - 5
Dividends redaling ta 202 z - - z - {19B2700} (1982700 - {1esaFo0y
Transactions wilh caners Hi #dnie FYB,BE  (1900.836)  (1339.070) (1333.000)

Balance as at 31 March 2013

2,767,264 37,880,996 (5,217,680)

623,468 5,050,329 16,625,022 67,835,460 2,458,260 60,291,736
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

COMPANY Attributable to the owners of the Parent
Share Share  Treasury Revaluation Qther Retalnad Taotal
Capital premium Rosorve Reserve Resarves Earnings
Account
E £ E £ E £ E
Halance as al 31karch 20t A B0E, TR 46,250 100 - ZEOTE 1330230 5,53 761 667054
Profit for the year - - - - 730503 730,303
Cther compretiensive [noome: - - - : H =
Actuads losses on pension soheme asscts - - B - - {1000 (1000
Revaugion of lnvestmenl - - - {2.828) - - {2.379)
Tranafor o dizposa of investment - - - 58,7 - - {58, T0i5)
Deferrend taxalion - - - W - - HTEE
Tofal comprehensiva lncoma for the yea - 3 - {4651 - B3 541491
Tranzacfions vith oaners recorded dinectly
in equity
Contribulicns by and distibulicns b
ATIETS
lesie of shares in the year 02 A B87 BIF . - - - 473408
Share-bazed paymrents - = - - 2000300 - ZE R0
Transfers on expiny of oplions - - - - 196,935 95,55 -
Cividends refating o 2011 - - - - (ieGTEME  (1567.590)
Cancetlsion of share pramium account - (TS - - 325000 100,000 -
Trresestny resorve ansing fromissue of
jeintly owned shares - (5217 550, . - - (5,217 580}
Transacions with cwners WHAL  (BeE2 B3 (52580 - LAl 852038  [(1780.256)
Balance a3 al 31harch 208 2,155960 JTEBOT (527580 ZOpET 4T410 Hanasa B A6, 750
Loss for theyear - - - - - (2233 (232.332)
Actusial gaing on pension schems assds - - - - - 57,000 57,000
Revalustion of freshold property - - - 28,200 E - 28,200
Deferred taafion - = = (3467 - = {3467
Total comprehensive income for he year - - - 24738 - {75,438 {60, 500
Transadions with ceners reconded directly
i equity
Conbibalicns by and distibufons to
[ Xl v
[asue of shares in the year 1221 274,078 - E - - 5370
Share-hased payments z - - = 358,260 - 353,260
Teanslens on cging of oplions - - - - (2063 82052 -
Cividends redaling to 202 - - - - - 11932700 {158 T
Transacions with owners g 274.07a - - Zerma [ 150038 {13360 070,

Balance as at 31 March 2013 2,767,251 37,880,936 (5 217 580) 254606 5050320 12235488 52971030

15




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CO. NUMBER: 01818170)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2013

MNon-current assets
Intangible asscls

Property, plant and equipment

[vastment propariy
[vestmonts

Current assets
Inventorizs

Trade and other receivables

[neome fax recoverabla

Oither takes and social securily
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current asscts

Tabilities
Trade and other payables
Shorl -term borrowings
Income lax

Olher taxes and social securily

Dividends
Current liabllities

Met current assets

Total assets less current liabilitles

Naon current liahilities
Defarred lax

TOTAL ASSETS LESS TOTAL LIABILTIES

EQUITY

lssued sharo capital
Share premium account
Treasury resernve
Revaluation reserve
CHher resernvas
Retained earnings

Mincrily interests
TOTAL EQUITY

Approved by the Board and a

Peter Lawrence Director
The notas on pages 18 to 52 formpa

Motes

14

19
20

17

23

25

206

24

16

Group Coompany
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ E E £
41,169,357 39,108,147 - =
1,176,213 1,268,063 671,381 662,589
161,642 154,773 151,642 154,773
8,738 8,738 20,082,240 20,082,240
42 606050 40,540,721 20,805,273 20,580,612
BAZ603F 4497317 - -
i1,248.516 10,755,380 30,348,663 28.912,983
23,305 15,921 - -
170,615 292,182 167612 229,630
0,664,445 14,002 422 4,130,622 9,793,234
27 532006 29,483,232 34,636,597 38,935,852
(6,915,083) (6,705,991} (278,332) (V34 ,166)
{2,134, 765) (4.402690) {2,134, 765) (4,492,600)
(174.467) (o8,084) - -
(258.454) (157 572) (50,087)  (44,143)
{31,835) (123 (31,838) (31,122
[9,515,504) (11,445459) {2,495,029) (5,302,121}
18,017,402 18,037,773 32,141,868 33,633,731
60,523,352 58,578,494 53,047,141 54,533,343
{231,616) (330,379 (76,081)  (¥2.590)
60,201,736 58,248,115 52,871,080 54 460,753
2,767,251 2,755,960 2,767,251 2,755,960
37,880,055 37606917 37,880,998 37.6068917
(5,217.580) (5217.580) (5,217,580 (5,217,580
523,468 408,728 254,606 229,857
5,080,328 4,774,131 50680328 4774131
16,820,022 15,938,372 12,235,488 14,311,468
57,833,486 556,355,528 52,971,080 54460,753
2,458,250 1,891,687 - -
60,291,736 58,248,115 52,971,090 54,460,753

d for issue on 11 July 2013

W S

csa firanciatsEEments.




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

MNotes
Cash flows from aperating activities
Profitf{loss) before income tax
Adjustment for:
Net finance costsf{income)
Depreciation 12 & 13
Amortisation of intanglble assels 11
Pansion payments 21
Pansion aperating costs 21
Share based paymenis 22
Profit on disposal of investment
Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
Change in inventories
Change in receivables
Change in payables
Cash generated fromf{used in) oparations
Finance cosls
Income tax
Net cash fromf{absorbed by} operating activitles
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of invesliment
Acquisition of property, plant and equiprment 12
Acquisition of investment property 13
Purchase of intangibles 11
Firnance Income
Met cash {(usad in)ffrom investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeads from issue of share capital
Dividends paid
Purchase of own shares
Met cash (used In} financing activitics
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Foreign exchange movements
Balance at 1 April 2012
Balance at 31 March 2013 18

B

Group Group  Company Company
2013 202 2013 2Mmz2

E £ E E
3,246,090 2,320,342 (232,332) 732,074
213,705 (115504) (398 422) {398,154)
190,224 08,219 22,933 21,832
2,562,217 3,593,365 - e
{60,000) {64,000 {60,000) {64,000)
4,000 3,000 4,000 3,000
358,260 280,890 368,260 290,850

- (28,210} - {58, 766)

6,514,495 6,098,102  [305,561) 526,976
(2,008,620) 386,612 - -
(258,569) (1,396,043) (1,250,662) (599,864}
310,874 991,542 {448,880} A497,083
4,558,191 6,080,212 (2,008,103) 424,205
{39,184) {90,356) {38,895) {89,831)
{185,802} 140,185 - 219,119
4,333,205 6,130,042 (2,045,098) 553,493

- 308,766 - 308,766

(3B8,642) {140,457} (324) (27,143

- (156,560) - (156,560)
(4.619,5066) {4.063,647) . A
56,214 126,931 437 417 483,985
(4.601,904)  (3,924,957) 437,023 609,058
244,027 4,390,913 244,927 4,380,813
(1,941,544) (1.614,317) (1.941,544) (1,225738)
- {5,217 580} - (5,217,580}
(1,686,617) {2,440,984) (1,696,617) (2,052,403)
(1,965 406) {235,899) (3,304,692) {889,852)
{14,645) 327,290 - -
8,509,732 9,418,341 5 300,548 8,190,401
7,529,678 9,508,732 1,985,857 5,300,549




ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

1. General information
Eco Animal Health Group plc ("the company”) and its subsidiaries (together "the group"y manufacture
and supply animal health products globally.

The Company is traded on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange and is incorporated and
domiciled in the UK. The address of its registered office is 78 Coombe Road, New Malden, Surrey,
KT3 405.

2. summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The group has presented its annual report and accounts in accordance with International Financial
reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopled by the European Union, IFRIG interpretations and the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under [FRS.

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the European Union,
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
the amount, event or actions, actual results ullimately may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periads if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The principal accounting policies of the group are set out below and have been applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered material in relation fo the Group’s financial statements.

22 Adoption of new and reviged standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations
to existing standards are mandatory for the first time for the accounting period ended 31 March 2013.

Effective from

IFRS 1 "Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of

Fixed Dates for First —time Adopters” 1 July 2012
IFRS7 "Disclosures: Transfers of Financial

Assets" 1 -July 2012
1AS 1 "Presentation of ltems of Other

Comprehensive Income” 1 July 2012
IAS 12 "Defarred Tax: Recovery of Underlying

Assets” 1 January 2012
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

2.3 Adoption of new and revised standards (continued)

The adoplion of these standards and interpretations has not had a significant impact on the Group. At
the date of the authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations
were in issue but not yet effective.

Effective fram

Annual Improvements 2008 - 201 1 January 2013
"Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
IFRIC 20 a Surface Mina" 1 January 2013
IFRS 1 "Government Loans’ 1 January 2013
"Disclosures; Offselling Financial Assets
IFRS 7 and Financial Liabilities" 1 January 2013
IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" 1 January 2013
IFRS 10 {issued 2012} “Conzolidated Financial Btatements” 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 (issued 2012) *Joint arrangements” 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 (issued 2012} "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 (issued 2012} "Fair Value Measurement" 1 January 2013
IAS 19 "Employee Benefits (Revised)" 1 January 2013
1AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” 1 January 2014
1AS 28 “Investments in Associates and Jaint
Ventures” 1 January 2014
A5 32 “Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities™ 1 January 2014

A review of the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations continues. At this stage
the directors do not belisve that they will give rise to any significant financial impact.

The Group did not adopt any new or amended standards early during the year and does not plan to
earty adopt any of the standards issued but not yet effective.

2.4 Basls of consclidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
drawn up to 31 March 2013

An entity is classed as a subsidiary of the Company when as a result of contractual arrangements the
Company has the power ta govern its financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured, as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liahilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Identifiable assels
acquired and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value the difference is recagnised
directly in the income statement.

Accounting policies have been changed where material to ensure consistency with the paolicies
adopted by the Group. Although the subsidiaries in Brazil and China have December year ends, the
Group uses management accounts to the end of March to prepare the Group accounts. Subsidiaries
are wholly consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the dale that control ceases.
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated on consolidation.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operaling decision-maker who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified as lhe Board.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(=) Functional and presentational currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates {"functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentational currency.

{b) Transactions and balances

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cutrencies are translated into Pounds Sterling
at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowing and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within finance income or finance cosis.

{c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows;

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of the balance sheet;

v incarmne and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates
unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case the income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the ransaction; and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

When a foreign operation is partially disposed or sold, exchange differences that were recognised in
equity are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on lhe acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assels and liabilities of
the foreign entity and translated at the closing exchange rale.

2.7 Financial Instruments

Mon-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss)
are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual
pravisions of the instrument,
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contraclual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it lransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows from the financial assetin a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right fo offset the amounts and intends to settle
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three
months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.

MNon-derivative financial liabilities

All financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised
initially on the date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire,

The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: bank overdrafts and trade and other
payablas.

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly altributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.8 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the costs of acquisition over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the entity recognised at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not subject to amorlisation but is tested for impairment.

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement. On
disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is Included in
the determination of the profit or loss recognised in the income statement on disposal. Goodwill
arising before the date of transition to IFRS, on 1 April 2004, has been retained at the previous UK
GAAP amounts, subject to being tesled for impairment at that date. Goodwill written off o reserves
under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and is not included in determining any
subseqguent profit or loss on disposal.
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

2.9 Other intangible assets

Drug registrations, patents and licences

The Group recognises internally generated or externally acqguired intangible assets at cost and
subsequently recognises them at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are recognised at fair value.

Expenditure on drug registrations and licences is recognised as an internally generated or externally
acquired intangible asset only if all the following conditions are met;

. an asset is created that can be identified
8 it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic henefits: and
. the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

All drug registrations and licences have previously been amortised on a straight-line basis over their
useful ecanomic life of 10 years. However, following the granting of Aiviesin's first marketing
authorisation in the USA in July 2012, which has greatly increased the economic potential of the
product, management have revised their estimate of the useful life of the Aivlosin drug registrations
only fram 10 to 20 years and in accordance with IAS8 have amortised the remaining book value of the
Aivlosin registrations over the remainder of the useful life of these registrations from that date. This
change in accounting estimate, which was first reported in detail in the interim accounts, has
increased reported profit for the year by approximately £1.3 million and has increased the carrying
value of the drug registrations at the year end by the same amount. The effect in the year ended 31
March 2014 may be an increase in reported profit and the carrying value of drug registrations of
approximately £1.8 million.

Distribution rights

Distribution rights are recognised at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful ecanomic life of 20 years, They are reviewed for impairment when any indication of potential
impairment exists.

240  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated
to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful life, as
follows;

Plant and machinery 20% on cost
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 20% on cost
Motor Vehicles 25% on cost

Freshold land and bulldings are stated at valuation less depreciation. The property is professionally
valued by a qualified surveyor at least once every three years. Surpluses and deficits arising from the
periodic valuations are taken to the revaluation reserve in the statement of financial position and are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year. Depreciation is provided at a rate
calculated to write off the valuation less estimated residual value over the remaining useful life of the
building at a rate of 2 per cent per annum. Land is not depreciated.

211 Impairment of non-financlal assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's assels are reviewed at each year end, to determine whather
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the impairment loss if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair value and its value in use. For intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, an impairment test is
performed at each year end.
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ECO ANIMAL HEALTH GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

In assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows from the asset are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of maney and the risks specific to the assel. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if the recoverable amount increases as a result
of a change in the estirates used to determine the recoverable amount, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.

2142  Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or far administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition
and subsequently at its cost less any accumulated impairment and depreciation. Depreciation is
provided on a slraight line basis over the property’s expected useful economic life of 50 years.

213 Leasing
The Group leases certain property, plant and eguipment.

Assets obtained under finance leases, where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are capitalised as property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the sharter of the
lease term and their useful lives. Obligations under such agreements are included in borrowings net
of the financial charge allocated to future periods. The financial element of the rental payment is
charged to the income statement so as to produce constant periodic rates of charge on the net
obligations outstanding in each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operaling leases are charged to the income
staterment on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct |abour and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business.

215 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowance for estimated,
irrecaverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference batween the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
complited at initial recognition.

216  Investments

Nor-current asset investments are stated at fair value, including transaction costs, less impairment.
They are recognised or derecognised on the date when the contract for acquisition or disposal
requires the delivery of that investment.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment in the Parent Company's statement of
financial position.
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An impairment is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the assetis
impaired and is measured on the difference between the investment’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate adjusted for a
risk premium. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
investment's recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised costs would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Investments classified as available-for-sale are stated at fair value, Where securities are held for
trading purposes, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in net profit or loss
for the period. For available-for-sale investments, gains and lnsses arising from changes in fair value
are recognised direclly in equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity, determined using the weighted
average cost method, is included in the net profit or loss for the period.

2147  Interestin joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control; that is, when the strategic financial and operating
policy decisions relating to the activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

The Group reports its interests in jointly controlled entilies using proportionate consolidalian. The
group's share of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of jointly controlled entities
are combined with the equivalent items in the results on a line-by-line basis.

218 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

219  Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

2.20 Bank borrowings and |oans

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafls are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs (which equate to fair valug). Finance charges including premiums payable on settlerment or
redemption and direct issue costs are accounted for on an accruals hasis in profit or loss using the
affective interest rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
that they are not settled in the period In which they arise.

221  Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

2.22  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present ohligation as a result of a past event and it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation outstanding at the year end
and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
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2,23  Revenue recognltion

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in
the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue on despatch of the goods (which the directors believe transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer). No goods are despatched on a sale
or return basis. Dislributors trade on their own account and not as agents.

The Group also receives interest, rental income, royalty income and management charges in respect
of accounting services supplied to certain ex-subsidiaries. The amounts are small and are recognised
on an accruals basis.

2.24 Pensions

Defined Contribution Scheme

The pension costs charged against operating profils represent the amount of the contributions
payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting periad.

Defined Benefit Scheme

The regular cost of providing retirement pensions and related henefits is charged to the income
statement over the employees' service lives on the basis of a constant percentage of earnings. Any
difference between the charge to the income statement and the contributions paid to the scheme are
disclosed as an asset or liability in the statement of financial position in accordance with 1AS 19,
Actuarial gains or losses are taken directly to equity in the statement of comprehensive income,

2.25 Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS2 Share-based payments. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, IFRS2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November
2002 that were unvested at 1 January 2005,

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments o certain employees in exchange for
services from those employees. Equity-seltled share-based payments are meastred at fair valug
(excluding the effect of non market-based vesting condilions) at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant of such equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions {with a corresponding movement in

equity).

The Group’s Employee Benefit Trust (“the Trust”) was set up on 6 October 2012 to administer the
Group's Joint Share Ownership Plan (JSOP). The trust was funded by loans from the Group, with its
assets comprising shares in the Gompany. The Group recognised the assets and liabilities of the
Trust in its own accounts and the carrying value of the Company's shares held by the Trust were
recorded as a deduction in total equity until such a time as the shares vest unconditionally to
employees.

Fair value, for both options and jointly owned shares is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behaviour considerations.

Further details of the inputs to the Black-Scholes model can be found in note 22 to the accounts,
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2.26 Taxation
Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid
(ar recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the

year end. Tax expenses are recagnised in the income statement or statement of comprehensive
income according to the treatment of the transactions which give rige to them,

Defarred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted, or substantially
enacted, by the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

2.27  Equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cosls directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the procesds,

Amounts arising on the restructuring of equity and reserves 1o protect creditor interests are credited to
the capital redemption reserve.

The Treasury reserve arises when the Company issues equity share capital under its Joint Share
Ownership Plan, which is held in trust by ECO Animal Health Group plc Employee Benefit Trust. The
interests of this trust are consolidated into the Group's financial statements and the relevant amount
treated as a reduction in equity. The expenses of the trust are included in the consolidated income
statement.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Final dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as |iabilities in the financial
statements in the period in which they are approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim
dividends are recognised when they are paid.

2,29  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumplions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are;

(a) Estimated impairment value of intangible assets
The Group tests annually whether intangible assets with indefinite life have suffered any
impairment. Other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when an indication of
potential impairment exists. Impairment provisions are recorded as applicable based on
directors' estimates of recoverable values. Details of the impairment reviews performed can
be found in note 11 of the financial statements.

(b} Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes predominantly in the United Kingdam but also in other
jurisdictions.

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are

some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises assels and liabilities based on estimates of the final agreed position,
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(c)

{d)

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Pension scheme

The Group maintains one defined benefit pension scheme which has been accounted for
according to the provisions of |AS19. Although the assumptions were determined by a
qualified actuary, any change in those assumptions may materially impact the financial
position and results of the Group. Details of the assumptions used can be found in note 21 of
the financial statements.

Share-based payments

The charge to the Income Statement in respect of share-based payments has been externally
calculated using management’s best estimales of the amount of options expected to vest and
various other inputs to the Black-Scholes model, as disclosed in nole 22. Any variation in
those assumptions may have a material impact on the Group's future results and financial
position,
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3 Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Board considers the business from a geographical
perspective. Geographically, management considers the performance in the UK and Europe, China,
Japan and the Indian subcontinent, Latin America and the rest of the world. The segment information
provided to the Board for the year ended 31 March 2013 is as follows;

Management cansiders Earnings before Interest, Tax, Deprecialion and Amortisation {“EBITDA"),
adjusted for share-based payments.

China, Japan
anc 1ha Indian Rest of ha
UK, Europe subcontinent Latin Amerlea Morth Amerlca wnorict Tolal
£ £ £ g E £ £

Year ended 31 March 2013
Total segmental revenoe 1202118 4323022 13,738,407 0,403,625 AETET43 4437208 363711 26
INter-segrment revente ) £ - (2854.106) (2.453.163) (2077903 - {TAA517E

Revante from external

carstomers 1202118 4323022 10,884,301 3,050,465 1,198,040 4427208 25.965,854
Sale of yoods 1,202,118 4,323,022 10584301 6,950,465 1,108,840 4,192591 28,751,337
Foyallics - - - - BMBIT 234617

1202 118 4,223.022 10,884 301 3,050,465 1A0E 840 4477308 23 .980.954

Adjusted EBITOA (915,195) 1,004,225 2,958,581 1,771,244 Jrael 178753 6,640,496
Tolal assels 03556833 12148870 1870063 17,243,042 2,440,145 10,171,378 70,038,856

Yearended 31 March 2012

Total segmental rever e TED2AE 4,201,343 11546043 117914871 - 4544830 32845327
bilei-segrent revenLic - - (2421888) (2,190,65) - (4,598 (4623,145)
Reavenue from external
customears _ TB023E 4201343 9,125,055 0,595.212 - 45490332 28922477
Sale of goods TG0,235 4,201,343 9,125,055 9,595,212 - 43260068 28006913
Royaliies - - - - - 315,204 315,264
780,255 4201343 0 425,055 5,595,212 - AB40,332  2BHE2ATT
Adjusted EBITDA {846,287y 1103737 1,934 133 2 636,352 - 1,358,337 6,187,512
Total asscls 15285478 0.484,7849 20078286 16,556,570 - BE3B332  T0,023853

Goodwill and other intangible assets are initially allocated to the geographical segments on the basis
of the proportion of sales achieved by each segment,
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3 Segment information (Continued)

A reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to profit before tax is provided as follows:

2013 2012

E £

Adjusted EBITDA for reportable segments 6,640,496 6187312

Depreciation (190,224) {98,219)

Amortisation (2, 562,217) (3,583,365)

Share-based payment charges (358,260)  (290,890)
Finance (expanse)/income {213,705) 115,504

Profit befare tax on continuing activities 3,316,080 2,320,342

4. Other income

The previous year's figures included an amount of E£550,000 received in compensation for a claim

against a former adviser relating to tax losses not claimed within the statutory time limit.
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5. Result from operating activities
2013 2012
£ £
Result fram operating activilies is stated afier charging:
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 15,795,333 17,504 226
Employee benelits expenses 3,432,330 2,967,640
Amortisation of intangible assets 2862217 3,593,365
Deprecialion 190,224 98,219
Loss on foreign oxchange lransactions 29,507 332,411
Research and development .43 37.561
Operating leasae renlals 207,560 178,625
Fees payabls to the Company's auditor for the audit of Ihe
parent Company and Group annual accounts 19,000 18,000
For the audit of the Company's subsidiaries 28,500 27,000
Fees payable to other auditors for audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 4,635 -
2013 2012
£ E
Earnings due to shareholders before interest, tax,
depraciation, amortisation, share-based payments,
forelgn exchange differences and losses on disposal
of discentinued activities
Prafit fror operating aclivities 3,528,795 2,204,838
Depreciation 190,224 98,219
Amorlisation 2,562 217 3,593,265
Share-based payments 358,260 280,880

66400496 6,187,312
Foreigh exchange differences 28,507 332,411

6,670,003 6,519,723
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6. Finance (cost)/income
2013 2012
£ £

Finance costs

Interest paid {39.184) {90,356)
Foreign exchange differences on bank loans and overdrafts (230,735) 74,929
Finance income

On shart term bank deposils ~ 56,214 130,931
Net finance {(expense)/incame _(213,705) 115,504

7. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is hased on the post tax profit for the year divided by the

weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

amount

2013 2012
Earnings Weighted Pershare  Earnings Weighted Per share
average amaount average
number of number of
shares shares
£000 000  (pence) £'000 000 {pence)

Earnings attributable to
ordinary shareholders on
continuing operations after

Dilutive effect of share

Fully diluted earnings per
share on continuing

Loss on discontinued

Fully diluted earnings per

tax 2 687 52,599 5.11 2,218 52,333 4.24
optiohs . 780 (0.08) ; 553 (0.05)
operations 2,687 53,388 5.03 2,218 52,886 4.19
activities (70) 3 (0.13) . . -

4.19

share 2,617 53,368 4.90 2,218 52 B86

Diluted earnings per share takes into account lhe dilutive effect of share options. For the purposes of
calculating earnings per share, shares held by the Employee Renefit Trust as part of the Joint Share
Ownership Plan are excluded from the calculation of the weighted average number of shares. The

weighted average number of shares held by the Trust during the year was 2,603,290
(2012:1,233,950).
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8. Taxation
2013 2012
£ £
Current tax year
Foreign corporation tax on profits for the year 294,395 189,527
Adjustrment for prior years - (9.411)
Current tax 294,395 180,116
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (101,908)  (486,700)
Income tax chargel{credit) 192,487  (308,584)
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Profit on ordinary activities hefore taxalion 3,316,000 2,320,342
2013 2012
£ £
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation mulliplied by the applicable
rate of UK corporation tax of 24% (2012: 26%) 795,862 603,289
Effects of:
Mon deductible expenses 170,266 148,535
MNon chargeable cradits (79,509)  (453,659)
Enhanced allowance on research and development expenditure (694,569) (742,797)
Different tax rate for foreign subsidiaries (34,725) (116,428)
Unused tax losses carried forward 229,226 283,899
Other lax adjusiments 6,026 {9,423)
Income tax charge 192 487  (308,584)
2013 2012
g %
Applicable tax rate per UK legislation 24 00 26.00
Effects of:
Mon deductible expenses 513 6.40
Mon chargeable credits {2.40) {19.55)
Enhanced allowance on ressarch and development expenditure [26.97) {32.01)
Different tax rate for foreign subsidiaries {1.05} {5.02)
Unused tax losses carried forward 8.91 11.37
COther tax adjustmenis 0.18 {0.40)
Effective tax rate 5.80 {13.21)

The UK corporation tax rate reduced from 26% to 24% with effect fram 1 April 2012. Deferred tax
balances at the year end have been measured at 24%. Further proposed reductions in the UK
corporation tax rate to 21% from 1 April 2014 and 20% from 1 April 2015 have not been recognised in
these financial statements and are not expected to have a material impact on the tax position of the
Group.
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9. Profit for the financial year
2013 2012
E £
Parent Company's (loss)/profit for the financial year (232,332} 739,303
10. Dividends
2013 2012
£ £
Dividend for the period ended 31 March 2011 of 3p per ordinary share - 1,667,505
Dividend for the period ended 31 March 2012 of 3.75p per ardinary
share 2,066,984 -
Dividend waived by Employee Benefit Trust _ (84,284) -

1,982,700 1,567,595

The Board is declaring a dividend of 4.00 pence per share in respect of the year ended 31 March
2013. A scrip dividend alternative will be offered.
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11. Intangible fixed assets
Group Goodwill Distribution Drug Total
rights  regisirations,
patents and
licence cosls
Cost £ £ E £
A1 April 2011 17,830,495 1,034,860 35,460,448 54,425,803
Addilions i . - 4,063,647 4,063,647
At 1 April 2012 17,930,495 1,034,860 39,524,095 58,489 450
Additions - 231,256 4388310 4,619,565
At 31 March 2013 17,930,495 1,266,116 43,912,406 63,109,016
Amortisation
At April 2011 - 371,044 15,417,943 15,788 087
Charge for the year - 51,743 3541622 3,593,365
Foreign exchange movements - - (2,043) (2,049)
At 1 April 2012 - 422,787 18,957,516 19,380,303
Charge for the year - 58,060 2,504,167 2,582 217
Foreign exchange movements - - (2,861} (2,861)
At 31 March 2013 - 480,837 21,458,822 21,939,659
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2012 17,930,495 786,279 22 452,583 41,169,357
At 31 March 2012 17,830,495 612,073 20,566,579 39,109,147
At 1 April 2011 17,830,495 663,816 20,042 505 38636816

The amottisation charge is included within administrative expenses on the income statement.

Distribution rights are amortised over their estimated useful life of 20 years and reviewed for
impairment when any indication of potential impairment exists. The remaining amortisation period at
the date of the financial statements ranged from 10 to 19 years.

The carrying value of goodwill is attributable to the following cash generating units:

Entity Date of acquisitlon E
Eco Animal Health Limited (remaining 50%) 1 Oclober 2004 17,358,621
Zhejiang Eco Bick Animal Health Products Limited 1 April 2007 04 257
ECOpharma Inc. {remaining 80%;) 24 December 2009 477,617

17,830,485

Goadwill acquired in a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the cash generating units
(CGU's) that are expected to benefit from the business combination.
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11. Intanglble fixed assets (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU’s are determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and the
estimated remaining useful life of the asset which is maintained at 30 years through ongoing
investrnent in the cash generating unit,

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the maost recent financial budgets and
projections that are approved by management for the year ahead and then exfrapolates them
assurming a 3% annual growth rate which is well below the current performance of the existing
business. The directors believe that the long term growth rate assumed does not exceed the average
long term growth rate for the relevant markets.

Management eslimates discount rates using the pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU's. In the current year management
estimated the applicable rate to be 11%. Despite general economic conditions, management
considers that there is adequate headroom when comparing the net present value of the cash flows to
the carrying value of goodwill to conclude that no impairment is necessary this year. On current
assumptions the excess of recoverable amount over carrying value is over £31 million.

Management believes that the most significant assumption in the calculation of value in use is the
eslirated growth rate. However, even if the growth rate were to be zero, the recoverable amount
would still be over £16 million more than the carrying value and no impairiment would be necessary.
This assumes an earnings multiple of 10 on the current budgeted results in estimating fair value which
has been derived from historical data.

Drug registrations and licences are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20 years,
which is the directors' estimate of the time it would take to develop a new product allowing for the
Group's patent protection and the exclusivity period which comes with certain registrations. Given the
economic climale the directors have conducted an impairment review in the current year by preparing
cash flow projections for the year ahead and extrapolating the results for the remaining life of the
registrations assuming zero growth and an 11% discount rate to establish value in use. On the current
assumptions the excess of the recoverable amount over carrying value is more than £16 million. The
calculations have also shown that on current budget figures a & year life is more than enough to justify
the current carrying value of these registrations. Moreover, fair value calculated as 10 times the
current cash generated by the registrations gives an even higher result, so management has again
concluded that no impairment is necessary.
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12. Property, plant and eguipment

Group Land and Plantand Fixtures, Motor Total

Buildings machinery fittings and  Vehicles

(freehold) equipment
Cost or valuation £ E £ £ £
At 1 April 2011 650,000 1,136,000 550,880 42 211 2,379,087
Additions - 6,117 74,749 59,581 140,457
Foreign exchange movements - 43,660 - - 43,660
At 1 April 2012 650,000 1,185,777 825635 i01,802 2,563,214
Addilions - 15,701 22,941 - 38,642
Foreign exchange movements - - 64,852 - - 54,852
At 31 March 2013 650,000 1,266,330 G48,576 101,802 2,666,708
Depreciation
At 1 April 2011 8,400 591,660 490,408 10,043 1,101,511
Charge for the year 9,400 33,433 37,597 16,012 96,442
Faoreign exchange movements - 97,180 g - 87,198
At 1 Agril 2012 18,800 722 283 528,013 26,085 1,295,151
Charge for the year 9 400 118,663 33,121 26,000 187,083
Foreign exchangs movements - 41,376 {4,562) {363} 36,451
Write back on revaluation {28,200) - - - {28,200}
At 31 March 2013 - BB2 222 556,572 51,701 1,490,495
MNet Book Value
At 31 March 2013 650,000 484,108 82,004 50,101 1,176,213
At 31 March 2012 531,200 463,494 97,622 75,747 1,268,083
At 1 April 2011 640,600 544,340 G0 478 32,168 1,277,588

The freehold property at 78 Coombe Road, New Malden was valued on 10 May 2013 by Mr R Sworn
of Kelion Sworn Chartered Surveyors and Valuers, London, W1, The fair value in use of the freehold
property was determined at £650,000 by means of applying a 7.75% discount rate to the annual rental

value of the property as determinad by local market conditions. The property will continue to be
valued on a regular basis.

The value of non depreciable land included within Land and Buildings is £180,000.

The freehold property of 78 Coombe Road, New Malden is subject to a legal charge held by the
company's bankers dated 20 March 1887.
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12. Property, plant and equipment {(continued)

The value of the freehold property would have been recorded at £317.437 (2012: £328.743) on a
histarical cost basis giving rise to the current revaluation surplus of £254 B06.This balance is not
distributable to shareholders.

Depreciation has been included in the administrative expenses line on the income statement, except
for £87 600 of depraciation of production equipment in our Chinese subsidiary ECO Biok, which is
included within cost of sales.

Company Land and  Fixtures, Motor Total
Buildings fittings and  Vehicles
{freehold) eguipment

Cost or valuation £ g £ £
At April 2011 650,000 143,517 - 783,517
Addilions - 677 26, 466 27,143
At 31 March 2012 650,000 44,194 26,466 820,660

Additions - 394 - 304

At 31 March 2013 650,000 144,588 26,466 821,004
Depreciation

At 1 April 2011 9,400 128,508 - 137,906
Charge for the year 9,400 9,084 1,671 20,155
At 1 April 2012 18,800 137,590 1,671 158,061

Charge for the year 9,400 3,790 6.612 19,802

Revaluation adjustmeant (28,200) - - (28,200)

At 31 March 2013 - 141,380 8,283 149,663

Met Book Value

At 31 March 2013 650,000 3,208 18,183 671391
At 31 March 2012 631,200 6,604 24795 662,599
At 1 April 2011 640600 15,011 - 655611

The freehold property at 78 Coombe Road, New Malden was valued on 10 May 2013 by Mr R Swarn
of Kelion Sworn Chartered Surveyors and Valuers, London, W1. The fair value in use of the freehold
property was determined at £650,000 by means of applying a 7.75% discount rate lo the annual rental
value of the property as determined by local market conditions. The property will centinue to be
valued on a regular basis.
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12, Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The value of non depreciable land included within Land and Buildings is £180,000.

The freehold property at 78 Coombe Road, New Malden, is subject to a legal charge held by the
company's bankers dated 20 March 1987,

The value of the freehold property would have been recorded at £317,437 (2012; £328,743) on a
historical cost basis giving rise to the current revaluation surplus of £254,606.This balance is not
distributable to shareholders.

Depreciation has been included in the administrative expenses line on the income staternent.

13. Investment property
Group and Company Land and Total

Buildings

{freahold)

£ E

Cost
Additions in the year ended 31 March 2012 156,550 156,550
At 31 March 2012 and 2013 156,550 156,550
Depreciation
Charge for the year 1,777 1,777
At 31 March 2012 1,777 1,777
Charge for the year . 31A 313
At 31 March 2013 4,908 4,908
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2013 151,642 151,642
At31 March 2012 164,773 154,773

Depreciation has been included in the administrative expenses line on the income statemeant.
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14, Fixed asset Investment
Group

Cost or fair value

At 1 April 2011

Revaluation in the year

Disposals

At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013

Met Book Value
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

At 1 April 2011

Company

Cost or fair value

At 1 April 2011

Revalualion in the year

Disposals

At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013

Impairment
At April 2011, 2012 and 2013

MNet Book Value
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

At 1 April 2011

Available for Unlisted Total

sale guoted investments
assets at fair
value

£ £ £

311,584 39,294 350,888

(2.828) (30,556)  (33,384)

(308,766) - (308,766)

- 8,738 8,738

- 8,738 8,738

_ ' SI?EE Br?ﬁ

311.594 39,294 350,888

Available for  Investments Total
sale quoted in subsidiary
assets at fair undertakings
value at cost

£ £ £

311,504 24,273,502 21,585,096

(2,828) = (2,828)

{308,766) - {308,766)

- 21,273,502 21,273,502

- 1,191,262 1,191,262

— - 20,082,240 20,082,240

_ 32 20,082,240 20,082,240

311,584 20,082,240 20,383,834
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14. Fixed asset investments (continued)

The Company holds more than 20% of the share capital of the following companies:

Company

Subsidiary undertakings held by Company
Zhajiang ECO Biok Animal Health Products
Limited

Shanghai ECO Biok Veterinary Drug Sale
Company Ltd. (via Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal
Produets Ltd.)

Petiove Limited

Eco Animal Health Limited

Subsidiary undertakings held by Group

ECO Animal Health Southern Africa (Pty) Limited
Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal Health Products
Limited

Shanghai ECO Biok Veterinary Drug Sale
Company Ltd. {via Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal
Products Lid.)

ECO Animal Health do Brasil Comercio de
Produtos Veterinarios Lida.

ECOpharma Inc.

ECO Animal Health USA Caorp.

Interpet LLC

ECO Animal Health de Mexico

ECO Argentina S.A.

Country of

registration or

incorporation Class

P. R. China Ordinary
P. R. China Ordinary
Greal Britain Ordinary
Great Britain Crdinary
South Africa Ordinary
P. R. China Ordinary
P. R. China Ordinary
Brazil Ordinary
Japan Ordinary
U.SA Ordinary
U.S.A, Ordinary
Mexico Ordinary
Argentina Ordinary

Shares
held %

91
100

100

43

48

0o
100
100
100
100
100

The principal activity of these undertakings for the |ast relevant financial year was as follows:

ECO Animal Health Limited

ECO Animal Health Southern Africa (Pty) Limited
Petlove Limited

Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal Health Products Limited

Shanghai ECO Biok Veterinary Drug Sale Company
Ltd.

ECO Animal Health do Brasil Comercio de Produtos
\eterinarios Ltda

ECOpharma Ing.

ECO Animal Health USA Carp.
Interpet LLC

ECO Animal Health de Mexico
ECO Argentina 3.A

40

Principal activity

Distribution of animal drugs
Mon-trading

Mon-trading

Manufacture of animal drugs
Distribution of animal drugs

Distribution of animal drugs

Distribution of animal drugs
Distribution of animal drugs
Mon-trading
Distribution of animal drugs
Mon-trading
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14. Fixed asset Investments {continued)

‘The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the results of these undertakings for the |ast
relevant financial year were:

Profitfloss Profit/loss for

Equity for the year Equily the year

2013 2013 2012 2012

£ £ £ ;5

ECO Animal Health Limited 5848715 2,503,244 3345471 2,068,100

Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal Health Products Lid 5,011,779 891,248 3,855,323 835,305
ECO Animal Health do Brasil Comercio de

Produtos Veterinarios Lida 1,280,474  (172,681) (120.901) {(197.683)

ECOpharma Inc 7,558,807 151,070 671,451 (98,253)

ECO Animal Health de Mexico (19,078} {12,084} 8,233 0,003

ECO Animal Heallh USA Corp. (475} - - -

The equity and results of Shanghai ECO Biok Veterinary Drug Sale Company Ltd are included within
those disclosed for Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal Health Products Limited.

All of the subsidiaries listed above were included in the consalidation for the year.

Zhejiang ECO Animal Health Products Limited and ECO Animal Health do Brasil Comercio de
Pradutos Veterinarios Ltda both have 31 December year ends. The Group receives management
accounts for the three months to 31 March for these subsidiaries for use in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

ECO Argentina S.A. which holds neither assets nor liabilities and which has not traded since its
farmation has been excluded from consolidation. Interpet LLC has also been excluded from
consalidation as it holds no assets or liabilities and has ceased trading.

The following trading subsidiaries have no requirement for audit under local legislation;

ECO Animal Health do Brasil Comercio de Produtos Veterinarios Ltda,
ECOpharma Inc.

ECO Animal Health USA Corp.

ECO Animal Health de Mexico.

The Group also holds (by means of its ownership of ECO Animal Health USA Corp.), a 50% joint
venture interest in Pharmgate Animal Health LLC, which is resident in U.S.A. Pharmgaie Animal
Health LLC distributes the group's products in the U.S.A,

The Group also holds a 50% joint venture interest in Pharmgate Animal Health Canada Ing, which
distributes its products into Canada.
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14, Fixed asset investments {continued)

Both Pharimgate Animal Health LLC and Pharmgate Animal Health Canada Inc. have accounting

years which end on 31 December.

The group's holdings in each of the joint venture companies share capital is given in the table below:

Holding
Pharmgate Animal Health Canada Inc {shares)
Common shares 100
Class A shares 100
Class B sharas -

Holding
Pharmgate Animal Health USA LLG [shares)
Common shares 100
Class A shares 100

Class B shares -

Shares Holding
in Issue %
200 50

100 100

100 -
Shares Holding
in lssue %
200 50

100 100

100 -

In each case class A sharas carry the rights to dividends payable out of profits altributable to the
group. These are made up of profits made by products supplied by the ECO group plus 0% of any
profit relating lo new products developed jointly by the pariners to the joint venture,

The fallowing amounts included in the group's financial statements are related to its interest in these

joink ventures.
Pharmgate Animal Health
Pharmgate LLC Canada Inc
2013 202 2013 2012
£ £ £ £
Current assets 113,561 31,803 54,479 16,377
Current liabilities (09,939) (9.851) (58,680) (14,705)
Sales 841,644 - 357,198 5.644
Marging 424,600 - 210,962 4,599
Expenses {457,804) {100,153} {145,108} =
15. Inventories
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ ¥ F £
Raw materials and consumables 3,225,988 2,279,354 -
Finished goods and goods for resale __ 3199949 2,137,963 - -

6,425,037 4,417,317
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15. Inventories (continued)

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales in the period

amounted to £15,795,393 (2012, £17,504,226).

16. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Amounls owed by group undertakings
Amounts owed by joint ventures

Cther receivables

Prepayments and aceried income

Mon current
Current

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ £ £ £
10,666,453 9,616,990 - -
- - 30,088,438 28,418,185
112,664 = = =
279,695 768,301 205,661 226,630
190,704 370,099 44,564 268,168
11,248,516 10,755,390 30,348,663 28,912,953
- 100,225 30,098,438 28,373,610
11,248,516 10,655,165 250,225 539,373
11,248,516 10,755,390 30,348,663 26,912,883

As at 31 March 2013, trade receivables of £1,881,527 (2012: £2,102,528) due to the Group and £nil
{2012: £nil) due to the Company were past due but not impaired. These relate to long standing
distributars with whorn we have agreed settliement terms and with whom there is no history of default.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 3 months past due
3 to 6 months past due
COver 6 months past due

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ E £ E
1,575,637 1,731,377 - -
220,108 286,649 - -
85,782 84 502 - -
1,881,627 2,102,528 - -
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186. Trade and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 March 2013, trade receivables of £60,269 were impaired and provided for. The impaired
receivables mainly relate to historic debt for which recovery is still being sought. The Group mitigates
its exposure to credit risk by extensive use of commercial credit reference agencies, close
management of its customers’ trading against terms offered and use of retention of title clauses
wherever possible. The ageing analysis of the impaired balances is as follows:

GGroup Campany
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ E £ £
Up to 3 months past due 6,102 - - -
3 to B months past due - - - -
Owver B menths past due 54,167 32,378 - -
60,268 32,379 - -

Moverment on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

Group
2013 2012
£ £
Balance at 1 April 32,379 124,348
Providedf{recovered)in the year 27.890 (¥5,605)
Written off in the year - (16,364)
Balance at 31 March 60,269 32,379

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ £ £ £
Pounds Sterling 851 016 776,993 30,317,630 28,780,350
Euros 2,459 140 2,857,514 - -
U S Dollars 4,495 019 5513412 31,033 132,633
Chinese RMB 684,528 411,957 - -
Brazilian Real 915,847 357 576 - -
Japaness Yen 625,170 482 G684 - -
Other currencies 1,216,895 345,254 - -
11,248,516 10,755,380 30,348,663 28,012,083

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are not significantly different to their fair values.
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17. Deferrad tax

Group
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Liabilities Net
2013 2012 2013 2012
E ¥ E E
Drug registration expenditure (2,193,807) (2,139,050) (2,193,897) (2,139,050)
Freehold property (78,051) (72,5490) (76,051) (72,590)
Plant and equipment (8,682) (12,094) (8,682) (12,094)
Tax losses carried forward 2,047,014 1,893,355 2,047.014  1.883,355
Amount {payalle) after more than one year (231,6186) (330,379)  (231,816) {330,379)
The movement an the deferred tax account can be summarised as follows:
Drug Froperty,
registration Freehcld plant and
expenditure property  equipment Total
£ £ £ £
At 31 March 2012 (245,695) (72,590)  (12,094) (330,379)
Credit/(charge) for the year through income
statement 890,130 - 12,004 102,224
Movement through the year through revaluation
reserve - {3,461} - {3,461)
At 31 March 2013 {155,565} (76,051) - {231.616)

The tax losses carried forward are not expected to expire under current legislation.

Any future dividend received from the Chinese subsidiary Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal Health Products

Limited will be subject to a 10 per cent withholding tax. The deferred tax liability in respact

not baen recognised.
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i7. Deferred tax (continued)
Company

Freehald

property Total

E £

At 31 March 2012 (72,590) (72,590)
Movement through the year through revaluation reserve (3.461)  (3.461)
At 31 March 2013 (76,051) (76,051)

No charge or credit (2012 credit of £1,732) was recognised in the Company's income statement for
the year. A charge of £3,461 (2012: credit of £14,782) was recognised in the Company’s Revaluation
Reserve.

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short term deposits held by the Group. The carrying
amount of these assets are not significantly different to their fair value.

Note Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ £ £ £
Cash and cash equivalents 0664443 14,002,422 4,130,622 8,793,239
Owerdrafts 20 (2,134,765)  (4,492,690) (2,134,765) (4,492,690)
Net funds per cash flow 7,525,678 0,508,732 1,995,857 5,300,549
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19. Trade and other payables

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ E £ £
Trade payables (6,089,247 5410817 57,953 124,057
Amounls due to joint venture 34,568 - - -
Other payables 424,791 887,400 187,650 565,651
Accruals and deferred income 356,979 407 774 32,620 44,458

6015983 6705091 278,332 734,166

20. Borrowings

Included within payables on the statement of financial position are the following amounts at fair value
secured by a debenture on the assets of the group:

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

£ E £ £

Short term borrowings 2,134,765 4492690 2,134,765 4,492,690

Currency analysis of short term borrowings

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

£ E E E

U S Dollars 835527 4,072,226 835527 4,072,226

Euros 1,288,238 420,464 1,299,238 420,464

2134765 4,492690 2,134,765 4,492,630

The Group has arranged a net overdraft facility of £1,000,000 which is subject to renewal in June
2014. It also has the facilily to overdraw in specific currencies within the net facility. The interest rate
for all currency overdrafts is 2,75 per cent over the relevant currency base rate and the borrowings
are secured by two debentures held over all assets of the company dated 28 January 1995 and 28
MNovember 2006.
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21. Pension and other post-retirement benefit commitments

Defined Contribution pension Scheme

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for the benefit of certain directors and
senior employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from the Group and independently
administered by insurance companies. The pension cost charge represents contributions payable to
the funds in the year and amounted to £340,268 (2012: £316,853).

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK for ex-employees only. A full actuarial
valuation was carried out at 8 April 2009 and updated 31 March 2013 by a gualified independent
actuary. The major assumptions used by the actuary were:

31 March 1 April

2013 2012

Discount rate 4.1% 4.6%
Rate of increase in pension payment 2.1% 2.9%
Inflation assumption wilh a maximum of 5% p.a. 2.8% 2.9%
Expected rate of return on assets 2.2% 4, 7%

Mortality rates
Pre retirement mortality is based on the mortality table known as AMCOO for males and AFCOO for
females and 70% of the martality indicated by this table has been taken, as in the previous year.

Post retirement mortality is based on the mortality table known as PCMAOQ for males and PCFAOO
for females. Allowance has been made for the improvement in martality experienced recently and
expected in the future by using 100% of the "Medium Cohort” improvement table, subject to a
minimum improvement rate of 1% for males and 0.7% for females. The previous years' figures were
based on the same mortality tables but allowance was made for improvement in mortality experienced
and expected by using 100%for males and 70% for females of the “Medium Cohort” improvement
table, subject to a minimum improvement rate of 1.4% for males and 1.1% for females. To allow for
the expected additional cost of purchasing annuities on retirement, 50% of the mortality indicated by
these projections was taken.

Under these mortality assumptions, the expected future lifetime for a member retiring at age 65 at the
year end would be 22.6 years for males (2012: 25.2 years) and 24.5 years for females (2012: 28.1
years). For members retiring in 20 years time, the expectation of life would be 24.6 years for males
(2012: 28.1 years) and 25.9 years for females (2012 31.3 years). However, it should be noted that
there are only 11 deferred members in the scheme and over 50 per cent of the scheme’s liabilities
relate to a single member who is due to retire in 2016.

The weighted average duration of the scheme's obligations at 31 March 2013 was 22.0 years (2012:
22,1 years).
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21, Pension and other post-retirement benefit commitments (continued)
Resulis 2013 2012
£ L £ £
Assets at start of year 2,958 000 2,684,000
Defined henefit obligation at start of year (2,957,000} {2.596,000)
Met asset at 1 April 2,000 88,000
Current service cost, including risk benefits {4,000) {3,000}
Past service crediit ___ 20,000 -
16,000 {3,000)
Expecled return on assels 132,000 150,000
Interest cosl {131,000} {139,000}
1,000 41,000
Gain/(loss) on assst return 34,000 {26,000)
Experience (loss) {31,000) {5,000}
Gainf{loss) on changes in assumptions 54,000 (120,000)
Statement of other comprehensive income 57,000 {151,000)
Employer confributions gross 60,000 G4,000
Expenses paid by trustees {7.000) {7,000}
53,000 57.000
Met asset at 31 March 2013 _ 129,000 2,000
Actual assets at end of year 2,760,000 2,959,000
Actug) defined benefit obligation at end of year 2,631,000 __2,957,000

The pension fund assets are all held within a policy managed by an insurance company.
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21. Pension and other post-retirement benefit commitments (continued)

Reconciliation of changes in the asset value during the year

2013 2012

£ £ E £
Fair value of assets at 1 April 2,959 000 2,684,000
Expected return on assels 132,000 150,000
Gainf{loss) on asset return 34,000 (26,000)
Employer contributions {gross) G0,000 54,000
Death in service insurance premiums paid {4,000} {3,000)
Expenses paid by trustees {7,000) {7,000}
(Decrease)fincrease in secured pensioners
value due to scheime experience {413,000} a7,000
Benefits paid {1,000} -
Fair value of assets at 31 March 2013 2,760,000 2,859,000

Reconciliation of changes in the liability value during the year

Defined benefit obligation at 1 April 2,957,000 2,596,000

Interest cost 131,000 139,000

Past service credit (20,000) -
Experience loss on liabilities 31,000 5,000
(Gain)floss on changes in assumptions (54,000) 120,000
(Decrease)lincrease in secured pensioners

value due to scheme experience (413,000) 97,000

Benefits paid (1,000) -

Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2013 2,631,000 2,957,000

The expected contribution to be paid by the employer during the next accounting year is £569,000.
This includes a provision of £4,000 for death in service risk premium, (2012 £3,000),

Year ended 31 March 2013 2012 2011 2010 2008

Present value of defined benefit obligation 2,760,000 2,959,000 2,596,000 2,575,000 2,227,000

Fair value of plan assets 2,631,000 2,957,000 2,684,000 2,592,000 2,224,000
Surplus/{deficit) in plan 129,000 2,000 88,000 17,040 {3,000)
Experience (loss)/gains on plan liabilities 31,000 {5,000} 1,000 9,000 3,000
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22, Share-based payments

The measurement requirements of IFRS2 have been implemented in respect of share options that
were granled after 7 November 2002. The expense recognised for share hased payments made
during the year is shown in the following table;

2013 2012
E E
Total expense arising from equity settled share-based transactions __ 358,260 290,830

The share based payment plans are described below:

Movements in issued share options and jointly owned shares during the year
The fallowing table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of and
movements in, share options and jointly owned shares during the period:

Jaintly ownadl
Options Joinly owned shanos Optlons shares
2013 2013 213 2013 2012 2m2 2mz2 2012
WAEP WAFP WAEP WALP
£ K E £
Qutstanding at 1 April 3257 850 1.38 2603290 2.00 4,007 390 1.23 - -
Granled during tha
perlod 410,000 2,23 - - 454,500 .87 2@03290 200
Explredicancelled during
fire porlod {10,000} 340 - = - - -
Exarcized during the
perind (209,240} 147 - - {1, 206,040) 1.03 - -
Qutslanding at 31 Warch 3.443,610 150 2600200 .00 3,267 450 130 2603280 200
Crercisahle at 31 March 16812410 1.24 315,000 200 1,120,350 1,11 =

The maximum aggregate number of shares over which options may currently be granted cannot
exceed 10 per cent of the neminal share capital of the Company on the grant date. The options
outstanding at 31 March 2013 had a weighted average share price of £1,50 and a weighted average
contractual life of 4.4 years,

Eco Animal Health Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the Executive Share Option Scheme, approved and unapproved share oplions are
granted to full time directors and employees who devote at least 25 hours per week to the
performance of duties or employment with the Company.

Details of options granted to directors can be found in the Directors Report and notes 28 (Directors
Emoluments) and 31 (Related Party Transaclions).

The exercise price of the options is equal to the market price of the shares at the date of grant. The
options vest three years from the date of grant and if the option holder ceases to be a director or
employee of the Company due to injury, disability, redundancy or retirement on reaching pensionable
age or any other age at which they are bound to retire at in accordance with the terms of thelr contract
of employment, the oplion may be exercised within a period of six months after the option holders so
ceasing, although the Board may, at its discretion, extend this period by up to 36 months after the
dale of cessation.
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22. Share-hased payments {continued)

If the option holder ceases employment for any other reason, the option may not be exercised unless
the Board permits. The approved and unapproved options will be forfeited where they remain
unexercised al the end of their respective contractual lives of ten and seven years.

An analysis of the expiry dates of the outstanding options is given below:

Exercise
price

Date of grant Unapproved Approved (pence) Expiry date
20 February 2006 11,880 25250 20 February 2016
10 August 2008 12,600 238.00 10 August 2016
03 March 2008 311,660 10850 03 March 2018
03 March 2008 443,970 108.50 03 March 2015
18 September 2008 35,000 85.00 18 September 2018
18 September 2008 115,000 85.00 18 September 2015
30 April 2009 45,550 147.00 30 April 2019
30 April 2009 481,450 147.00 30 April 2016
06 August 2008 22.000 135.00 086 August 2019
06 August 2009 103,000 135.00 086 August 2016
24 December 2008 19,350 155.00 24 December 2018
24 December 2009 10,650 i165.00 24 December 2016
12 April 2010 375,000 160.00 12 April 2017
20 May 2010 115,100 140.00 20 May 2020
20 May 2010 389,800 140.00 20 May 2017
13 September 2010 90,000 161.00 13 September 2017
11 October 2012 154,100 186.50 11 October 2021
11 October 2012 302,400 186.50 11 October 2018
g July 2012 400,000 22250 9 July 2018
30 July 2012 10,000 254,00 30 July 2018

T 2721370 727.240

ECO Animal Health Group plc Joint Share Ownership Plan

In accordance with the groups Joint Share Ownership Plan (JSOF), jointly owned shares may be
awarded to directors and employees of the company.

The shares are awarded at the market price on the day of the award and are held jointly by the
employee concerned and the ECO Animal Health Group plc Employee Benefit Trust, After a three
year vesting period, the shares may be sold at the option of the employee. The proceeds of sale are
split between the trust and the employee so that the Trust receives the original market value of the
shares sold plus a 5.9% per annum carry charge, with the employee receiving any excess over this
amount.

Because these are actual issued shares in the company rather than options there is no expiry date
associated with jointly owned shares, However, they will normally be forfeit if the employee ceases o
be an employee of the company for any reason other than death, injury, redundancy, retirement on or
after normal retirement age or disposal by the Group of the employing business entity.

The market price of the shares at 31 March 2013 was 264.0p with a range in the year of 198.5p to
270.0p.
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22. Share-based payments (continued)

Inputs to the Valuation Model (for options and jointly owned shares)

The fair value of share options granted prior to 31 March 2007 were estimated at the time of grant
using trinomial pricing model, taking into account all the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. For options issued after 1 April 2007, the directors took the decision that a Black-
Scholes model would be more approptiate.

The following table lists the inputs to the Black-Scholes model which applies to both options and
jointly cwned shares.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Vesling period (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Oplion expiry (years) 7-10yrs 7-10yrs 7-10yrs 7-10yrs 7-10yrs
Dividends expected on the shares 1.40% 1.00%  4.50% 500%  4.50%
Rigk free rale 0.50%  2.00% 200% 240%  4.19%
wolatility of share price 25% 27% 45% 40% 30%
Weighled average fair value of options 38.7p 41.0p 37.8p 32.6p 16.8p

The risk free rate has been based on the yield from UK Government treasury coupons. The volatility
of the share price was estimated based on standard deviation calculations on the historic share price.

Mo shares were issued under the Joint Share Ownership Plan during the year, (2012 2.603,290
shares)
The fair value of the part interest in the jointly owned shares was calculated using a Black-Scholes

model with the same assumplions as those used for the options issued during the year.

The weighted average fair value of the Jointly owned shares issued during the year ended 31 March
2012 was 26.1p.
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23. Share capital
2013 2012

E £

Authorised

68,100,000 Ordinary shares of 5p each

10,790 Deferred ordinary shares of 10p each
32,334 Converlible preference shares of £1 each

3,405,000 3,405,000
1,079 1,079
32,334 32,334
3,438,413 3,438.413

Allotted, called up and fully paid

55,345,016 ( 2012: 55,119,201} Ordinary shares of 5p each 2,767,251 2,755,960

During the year a further 16,575 shares were issued at a premium of £39,614 as a result of the take
up of the scrip dividend option and 203,240 mare shares were issued at a premium of £234,465 as a
result of the exercise of options by employees,

24, Minority interests

2013 2013 2012 2012
£ £ £ E
Balance at 1 April 1,891,587 1,790,587
Share of subsidiary's profit for the year 436,711 409,298
Share of foreign exchange gain on nat investiment 129,952 80,282
566,663 489,581
Share of dividend paid by subsidiary - {368,581)
Balance at 31 March 2,458,250 1,891,587
25. Traeasury share reserve
2013 2012
£ E
Balance at 1 April 2012 5,217,580 -
- 5,217,580

Arising in the year
Balance at 31 March 2013

5,217,580 5,217,580

Treasury share reserve consists of £5,217,580 {2012: £5,217,580), being the cost of 2,603,290

shares in the Campany held by the Group's JSOP.
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28. Other reserves

Group and Company

At 31 March 2011

Share-based payments
Transfer to retained earnings on expiry of oplions

Transfer on reduction of share premium for prolection

of creditors

At 31 March 2012

Share-based payments

Transfer to retained earnings on expiry of options
At 31 March 2013

Reserve
Capital for ghare-
redemption Special based
reserve reserve payment Total
£ E £ £
106,829 - 1,224,401 1,330,230

- 3,250,000

290,880 200,390
(06,080)  (96,989)

- 3,250,000

105,829 3,250,000 1,418,302 4,774,131

358,260 358,260
(82,062)  (82,082)

105,629 3,250,000 1,694,500 5,050,329

Included in the Group's retained earnings are the following exchange movements which have baan
taken directly to reserves on consolidation of the subsidiaries and joint ventures listed below:

In respect of,

Zhejiang Eco Biok Animal Health Products Limited
Eco Animal Health do Brasil Comercio de Produtos
Veterinarios Lida

ECOpharma |nc.

ECO Animal Health USA Carp.

ECO Animal Health de Mexico

ECO Animal Health Soulhern Africa (ply) Ltd
FPharimgate LLC

Pharmgate Canada LLC

Foreign currency differences atlributable fo owner
credited directly io reserves.
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At 1 April Movement
2012 in the year
£ £

408,193 135,265

28,172 63,799
60,497  (66,714)
= (475)

- (18,227)

(93) 586
(681) 1,156

I |

At 31 March
2013
£

544,448

91,871
(6,217)
(475)
(16,227)
493

475

16

117,386
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27. Financial commitments

At 31 March 2013 the Group had minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:
Land and Buildings Other
2013 2012 2013 2012
£ £ £ £
Expiry date:
Within one year 62,137 10,377 - 4 088
Between two and five years 855,760 536,871 42 482 62,136
In over five years 1,621,230 2,197,631 - -
2,539,133 2,744,979 42.482 67,124
Minimum expected sublease rental receipts.
Between two and five years. 525,370 - = =L
28. Capital commitments
The group had no authorised capital commitments as at 31 March 2013 {2012: Nil).
29, Directors’ emoluments
2013 2012
E E
Ermoluments for qualifying senices 541,126 386,008
Company pension contribulions to money purchase schemes 117,874 183,024
Share-based paymeants 213,479 174,979
Benefits in kind 21,421 22,317
893,900 766,328

During the year the directors exercised 31,640 (2012: 1,059,290) share options realising a gain of

£41,607 (2012: £968,243).

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under money purchase pension
schemes amounted to 3 (2012: 3), No directors accrued benefits under defined benefit schemes for

this or the previous year.

The highest paid director received £390,678 (2012: £304,766) including share-hased payments and

£50,000 (2012: £120,854) of pension contributions.
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30. Employees

Number of employees

The average number of employees (including directors) during the year was!

Directors

Production and development
Adminisiration

Sales

Employment costs (including amounts capitalised)

Wages and salaries
Share-based payments
Social security costs
Other pension costs
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2013 2012
Mumber MNumber

7 T

48 49

a6 34

63 &5

154 145

2013 2012

4 £
4322201 3,628,585
358,260 290,390
376,514 329 837
324268 319,853
5,381,243 4,568 165
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M. Related party transactions

At the year end ECO Animal Health Group plc owed P A Lawrence, a director of EGO Animal health
Group plc and members of his family a balance amounting to E146,502 (2012: £E512,337).

During the year, the Group provided management services to Anpario plc, a company in which P A
Lawrence is a Director and holds share options. Fees of £29,250 (2012: £26,000) were charged.

During the year, the Group provided the services of wo employees to G-Corp Limited, a company in
which P A Lawrence is a Director and shareholder. Fees of £43,451 (2012; £48,970) were charged.

During the year ECO Animal Health Limited made sales on an arm’s length basis to the following
other companies. The sales and year end balances are given in the table below. Since all of these
companies are wholly owned by the Group, lhese transactions and balances have all heen eliminated

on consolidation.

Yoar end Year end

Subsidiary companies Sales receivables{net) Saloes receivables

2013 2012

£ £ £ £

hejiang Eco Biok Animal Health Products Limited 1,707,566 601,240 1,854,311 558,361
Eco Animal Health do Brasil Comercio de

Produtos Veterinarios Lida, 2,273,712 1,116,160 2,196,659 1,250,962

Ecopharma Inc. 1,146,540 101,880 567,677 344 499

ECO Animgl Health de Mexico 178,451 550 489 - 175,411

ECO Animal Health USA Corp. 9497 534 437,785 - 22833

Interest and management charges from Parent to the other Group companies

During the year the Company made management charges on an arm's length basis to ECO Animal
Health Limited amounting to £217,259 (2012: £195,598) and charged interest of £425,598 (2012:
£397,208) to the Company, Both of these charges were made through the inter-company account and
were eliminated on consolidation.

ECO Animal Health Limited also made management charges on an arm’s length basis to ECOpharma
Inc. amounting to £113,426 (2012; £32,316). The whole transaction was eliminated on consolidation.

ECO Animal Health Limited also paid £346,682 (2012: £109,011) of service charges to ECO Animal
Health USA Gorp, which were that company's share of the excess expenses incurred by Pharmgate
LLC during the year. This transaction was eliminated on consaolidation.

During the year Zhejiang ECO Biok Animal Health Products Limited paid no dividend to ECO Animal
Health Group plc (2012: £31,085) and no dividend to ECO Animal Health Limited (2012: £373,356).

Inter Company Guarantee

ECO Animal Health Group plc and ECO Animal Health Limited have each given a guarantee dated 28
January 1995 to the company's bankers in respect of the £1,000,000 facility which has heen extended

to them jointly.
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31. Related party transactions (continued)

During the year P Lawrence and his family received dividends in the form of cash and shares to the
value of £420,320 (2012; £333,185), and the other directors and their families received dividends in
the form of cash and shares to the value of £13,916 (2012: £8095).

Joint Ventures

During the year ECO Animal Health Limited made sales on an arm’s length basis of £240,590 (2012
£4 515} to ECO Animal Health Canada LLC. The balance outstanding at the year end was £74,443
{2012: £4 515}

Key management compensation

The group regards the executive directors as its key management.

2013 2012

£ £

Salaries and shart term benefits 612,860 461,639
Retiramant benefits 117,874 183,024
Share-based payments 210,886 174,979

841,628 819,642

The nuimber of directors for which retirement benefits are acoruing is 3 (2012: 3).
32. Financial instruments

The Group uses financial instruments comprising borrowings, cash and liquid resources and various
items, such as trade receivables, trade payables etc. that arise directly from its operations. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance far the Group's operations. The directors are
responsible for the overall risk management.

The main risks arising from the Group's use of financial instruments are interest rate risk, capital and
liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign currency risks and they are summarised below. The policies have
remained unchanged throughout the year,

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained earnings and bank borrowings. At the
year end the interest rate exposure of the Group arose on currency overdraft facilities of £2,134,765
(2012: £4,492 600), details of which are shown in the note below on ¢apital and liquidity risk. IFRS7
requires the disclosure of a sensitivity analysis that details the effects on the Group's profit or loss and
other equity of reasonably possible fluctuations in market rates. This sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on exposure at the year end date. If interest rates had been 1 per cent higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant the Group's profit would have decreased/increased
by a maximuim of £21,348,
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32. Financial instruments {Continued)
Capital and liquidity risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure continuily as a going concern whilst maximising returns
through the optimisation of debt and equity. As part of this, the Board considers the cost and risk
associated with each class of capital. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 20, cash and cash equivalents in note 18 and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings
as disclosed in the Group's statement of changes in equity.

Liquidity risk is managed by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities with continuous
manitoring of the latest developments by management.

At 31 March 2013 the Group was contractually obliged to make repayments as detailed below:

2013 2012
WITHIN ONE YEAR OR ON DEMAND £ £
Bank overdrafts 2,134,765 4,492 620
Trade payables 5,009,247 5410817

8234,012 9,803,507

Credit risk

Credit risk is that of financial loss as a result of default by a counterparty on its conlractual obligations.
The Group's exposure to credit risk arises principally in relation to trade receivables from customers
and on short term bank deposits. Customers' creditworthiness is wherever possible checked against
independent rating databases and filing authorities or otherwise assessed on the basis of trade
knowledge and experience. Exposure and customer credit limits are continually monitored both an
specific debts and overall.

The cradit risk in relation to short term bank deposits and derivatives is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good credit ratings.

The Group operates in certain geographical areas which are from fime to time subject to restrictions in
the free movement of funds (such as those which have recently been experienced in the Venezuelan
market). The Board seeks to minimise the group's exposure to these markets but the nature of our
husiness makes it impossible to eliminate this exposure completely.

Currency risk

The Group operates in overseas markets particularly through its subsidiaries in China, Brazil and
Japan and is subject to currency exposure on transactions undertaken during the year. The Group
does some simple economic hedging of receivables when the Board feels it is appropriate to do so
and foreign exchange differences on retransiation of foreign monetary items are taken to the income
statemeant.
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32 Financial instruments (Continued)

The table below shows the extent to which the Group companies have monetary assets and liahilities
in currencies other than in Sterling:

Foreign currency of Group operations
Chinese Japanase Brazilian

2013 Us Dollar Euros Rand RMB Yan Real Cther
Sterling equivalent {000's) 73 G70 G617 3,841 1,265 921 480
2012

Sterling equivalent (000's)  (1,830) 2,141 266 2,790 438 704 192

At 31 March 2013 the Group was mainly exposed to the Euro, the Chinese RMB, the Japanese Yen
and the Brazilian Real. The following table details the effect of a 10 per cent movement in the
exchange rate of these currencies against sterling when applied to oulstanding monetary items
denominated in foreign currency as at 31 March 2013, A positive number indicates the decreases in
prafit which would arise from a 10 per cent weakening of the foreign currency concernead.

2013 2012

E'000 £'000
U S Dollar 7 {175)
Euro a1 185
Chinese RMB 349 254
Japanese Yen 115 72
Brazilian Real 84 40
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32 Financial instruments (Continued)
Analysis of financial Instruments by category

Group

2013
Imvestmenls

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

2012

Investiments
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

Company

2013
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

2012

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Cash and cash equivalents

All financial liabilities in the Group's and Company's statements of financial position are classified as

Loans and
receivables
£

8738
11,057,812
£,664,443

Loans and
receivakles
£

8,738
10,385,201
14,002,422

Loans and
receivables
£

30,304,089
4,130,622

Loans and
receivables
£

28,844,815
8,793,238

held at amortised cost for both the current and previous year.

33. Post Balance Sheet event

The company issued a total of 19,490 shares at a price of £1.085 each as a result of the exercise of

employee share options on 2 May 2013,
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Total
E

8,738
11,057,812
0,664 443

Tatal
£

8,738
10,385,291
14,002,422

Total
£

30,304,099
4 130,622
Total

£

28,644,815
9,783,238




ECO

Animal Health Group plc

NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeling of ECO Animal Ilealth
Group ple will be held at 78§ Coombe Road, New Malden, Surrcy K173 4Q8 at 9 am
on 3rd September 2013 lor the following purposes:

1. ‘'l'o receive and adopl the report of the directors and (he Group Financial
Statements for the 12 months ended on 31 March 2013, together with the
report of the auditors;

2. To re-cleet Mrs Julia Trouse and Mr Kevin Stockdale, the Directors reliring by
rotation who, being eligible, ofTer themselves for re-election:

3. To appoint the anditors, Reeves & Co LLP and to authorise the directors to
delernmiine their remunceration;

To consider and il thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions as Special

Resolutions:

4, That in substitution lor the authority granted to the diveclors pursvnant to a

speeial resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting ol the Company held on

2nd September 2011, the directors be gencrally and unconditionally authorised for
the purposes of Scction 551 of the Companies Act 20006 (“the Act”) lo exercise
all the powers of the Company to allot shares up to an aggregate of £636,775
provided that this authority shall expire on 2 Oclober 2014, or, if sooner, at the

Company’s next Annual General Meeting, save thal the Company may, before

such expiry, make an ofler or agreement which would or might require relevant

securitics to be allocated alter such expiry notwithstanding that the authority
conlerred by this resolution has expired. All authorities previously conferred
under Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 arc revoked, but such revocation
shall nol have retrospective effect.

5. That the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised
for the purposes ol Section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 to make market
purchases (within the meaning of Scction 701 of the Companics Act 2006) of
Ordinary Shares of 5 pence each in the capital of the Company provided that :
(a) the maximum number ol Ordinary Shares which may be purchased is
553,645 (representing one per cent of the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital as al the date of this notice);

(b) the minimum price (cxclusive of expenses) which may be paid for each
ordinary share is 10 penee;

(¢) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for cach
Ordinary Share is an amount cqual to 105 per cent of the average of the
middle market quotations of an ordinary share in the Company taken from the
Daily Official List of the London Stock Lxchange ple for the five business
days immediately preceding the day on which the share is contracted Lo be
purchased;

(d) this authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting ol the Company after the passing of this resolution or on 2 October
2014, whichever is earlicr, (unless previously renewed, varied, or revoked by
the Company in general mecting); and




(e) the Company may, before such expiry, enter into one or more contracts to
purchase Ordinary Shares under which such purchases may be completed or
exccuted wholly or partly aller the expiry of this authority, and may make a
purchasc of Ordinary Shares in pursuance of any such contract or contracts,

6. Thal pursuant to the passing of the resolution numbered 4 above, and in
substilution for the authority granted to the directors pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting ol the Company held on 2nd
September 2011, the directors be empowered pursuant o Section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 to allot equily securilies (as defined in Section 560 of the
Companics Act 2006) and sell treasury shaves for cash pursuant to the
authority given pursuant to Resolution 4 above as if Section 561 of the
Companics Act 2006 did not apply to any such allotment or sale provided that
the authority conferred by Resolution 4 above and by this Resolution 6 shall
cxpire on 27th Seplember 2013 or, if sooncr, at the Company’s next Annual
General Meeting (save that the Company may, before the expiry ol such
authorily, make offers or arrangements requiring relevant securities (o be
allotted or sold prior to such cxpiry and the diveclors may allot relevant
securities or sell freasury shares in pursuance ol such offers or arrangements as
if the authority conferred had nol expired) and provided that the disapplication
of Scetion 561 of the Act eflected by this Resolution 6 is limited to the
allotment ol equity securities and the sale of treasury sharcs up to an aggregate
nominal value of £276,823 being ten per cent of the current issued share
capital of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Julia Trouse - Secrelary
New Malden L1 July 2013
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Animal Health Group plc

FORM OF PROXY FOR USE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

B i s e i s v v T e T A 3 B S PR S R
{Flease complete in BLOCK CAPITALS)

being (a) Member(s) of the above named Company, owning sharas;
HEREBY APPOINT

failing whom the Chairman of the Meeting as myfour proxy to vote for mefus on my/our behalf on any
resolution proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 3rd September 2013
at Bam and in particular to vote on the resolutions to be proposed thergat in the manner indicated below

VOTE
RESOLUTIONS FOR [ AGAINST | WITHELD

1. To receive the directars’ report and financial statements for
the 12 months ended 31 March 2013,

2, To re-elect Mrs Julia Trouse and Mr Kevin Stockdale, the
Directors retiring by rotation who, heing eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

directors to determine their reruneration.
4. To allow the Board to allot unissued shares up to an
aggregate nominal value of £636,775.

5. To authorise the Company to make market purchases up to
553 645 of its shares.

6. To allow the Board to issue equity securities for cash up to a
nominal value of £276,823.

(Please indicate with an "X" in the appropriate space how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific
direction as to voting is given then proxy will vote or abstain at his discretion.)

Date: Signature: o

1. IFyou wish to appoint a proxy olher than the Chainman of the meeling, please insert the name and

address of
your proxy (who need not be a member of the Campany).

2. This form of proxy must be lodged at the Company's Registered Office at 78 Coombe Road,
New Malden, Surrey KT3 4Q5 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding
of the meeting.

3. In the case of a corporation, this form of proxy must be executed under seal or under the hand of a
duly authorised officer of the corporation.

4. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who lends a vote whether in person or by proxy
shall be accepted to the exclusion of votes of the other joint holders and or this purpose seniority will
be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members in respect of the
joint holdings.

5. Any alteralions to this form of proxy should be initialled.




